Public Document Pack

CYNGOR SIR
. YNYS MON

% ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY COUNCIL

Mr Dylan Williams
Prif Weithredwr — Chief Executive

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices
LLANGEFNI

Ynys Mén - Anglesey

LL77 7TW

Ffon / tel (01248) 752500
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD

NOTICE OF MEETING

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A GORCHMYNION | PLANNING AND ORDERS COMMITTEE

DYDD MERCHER,

3 RHAGFYR, 2025 am 1.00 o’r gloch yp

WEDNESDAY,
3 DECEMBER 2025 at 1.00 pm

CYFARFOD HYBRID - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, HYBRID MEETING - COUNCIL CHAMBER,
SWYDDFEYDD Y CYNGOR, LLANGEFNI AC | COUNCIL OFFICES, LLANGEFNI AND

YN RHITHIOL DRWY ZOOM

VIRTUALLY THROUGH ZOOM

Swyddog Pwyligor

Mrs Mairwen Hughes

01248 752518 Committee Officer

AELODAU / MEMBERS
Cynghorwyr / Councillors:-

Cynghorwyr/Councillors :-

Geraint Bebb

Jeff Evans

Neville Evans

Glyn Haynes (Is-gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
Kenneth P Hughes

John Ifan Jones

Robert LI Jones

Jackie Lewis

Euryn Morris

Dafydd Roberts

Ken Taylor (Cadeirydd/Chair)
Robin Williams

(Sedd Wag/Vacant Seat)




Please note that meetings of the Committee are streamed for live and subsequent broadcast on
the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and data
collected during the live stream will be retained in accordance with the Authority’s published policy.

Any additional information to hand following publication of reports will be verbally reported
upon to the meeting.

Before a decision notice is released conditions of approval or reasons for refusal given in
written reports may be subject to minor amendments to account for typographical errors.

MEMERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Geraint Bebb

Jeff Evans

Neville Evans

Glyn Haynes (ls-gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
Kenneth P Hughes

John Ifan Jones

Robert LI Jones

Jackie Lewis

Euryn Morris

Dafydd Roberts

Ken Taylor (Cadeirydd/Chair)
Robin Williams

(Sedd Wag/Vacant Seat)

AGENDA
1 APOLOGIES
2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declaration of interest by any Member or Officer in respect of any item of
business.
3 MINUTES (Pages 1 -8)
To submit, for confirmation, the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and
Orders Committee held on 5 November, 2025.
4 SITE VISITS
None to be considered by this meeting.
5 PUBLIC SPEAKING
6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED
None to be considered by this meeting.
7 APPLICATIONS ARISING
None to be considered by this meeting.
8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS

None to be considered by this meeting.

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS




Please note that meetings of the Committee are streamed for live and subsequent broadcast on
the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and data
collected during the live stream will be retained in accordance with the Authority’s published policy.

None to be considered by this meeting.

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS

None to be considered by this meeting.

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS
(Pages 9 - 14)

11.1 — FPL/2025/240 — 11 High Street, Menai Bridge
FPL/2025/240

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS (Pages 15 - 38)

12.1 — HHP/2025/93 — Smyrna Chapel, Glanhwfa Road, Llangefni.
HHP/2025/93

12.2 - HHP/2025/151 — Ty Hen Efail, Llanddona
HHP/2025/151

12.3 — LUE/2025/30 - Star Crossroad, Star
LUE/2025/30

12.4 — VAR/2025/42 — Star Crossroads, Star
VAR/2025/42

13 OTHER MATTERS

None to be considered by this meeting.


https://ioacc.my.site.com/s/papplication/a1GR5000003eJ2DMAU/fpl2025240?language=en_GB
https://ioacc.my.site.com/s/papplication/a1GR5000002aus9MAA/hhp202593?language=en_GB
https://ioacc.my.site.com/s/papplication/a1GR5000003YYaDMAW/hhp2025151?language=en_GB
https://ioacc.my.site.com/s/papplication/a1GR5000003ONzRMAW/lue202530?language=en_GB
https://ioacc.my.site.com/s/papplication/a1GR5000003OO4HMAW/var202542?language=en_GB

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Planning and Orders Committee

Minutes of the hybrid meeting held on 5 November 2025

PRESENT: Councillor Ken Taylor (Chair)
Councillor Glyn Haynes (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Geraint Bebb, Neville Evans, Kenneth Hughes,
John Ifan Jones, R LI Jones, Jackie Lewis, Euryn Morris and
Dafydd Roberts

IN ATTENDANCE: Team Leader (GJ) (for applications 12.1, 12.2 and 13.1),
Team Leader (CR) (for applications 12.3 and 12.4),
Legal Advisor (BB),
Group Engineer (Development Control) & Traffic Management
(AR),
Planning Officer (OR),
Planning Assistant (HW),
Committee Officer (MEH),
Support Assistant — Democratic Services (Webcasting) (CH).

APOLOGIES: Councillors T LI Hughes MBE and Robin Williams

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Nicola Roberts — Portfolio Member for Planning, Public
Protection & Climate Change.

Councillor Derek Owen

The Chair welcomed Councillor Euryn Morris to his first meeting of the Planning
and Orders Committee.

The Chair wished to thank Councillor Alwen Watkin for her contribution to the
Planning and Orders Committee, and he wished her well in her recovery following
surgery recently.

1 APOLOGIES
As noted above.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None received.
3 MINUTES

Page 1



10

11

12

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held
on 1 October, 2025.

SITE VISITS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
PUBLIC SPEAKING

There was a Public Speaker in respect of application 12.1.

APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
APPLICATIONS ARISING

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND
OFFICERS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.
REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS

12.1 FPL/2025/108 — Full application for the redevelopment of Canolfan
Penrallt into a 13-bedroom boutique hotel and wedding venue together with

alterations and extensions at Canolfan Penrallt, LIangefni

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee at the
request of Local Members due to local concerns.

Public Speaker
Mr Owen Evans, in support of the application, said that the application is for a

boutique hotel and a wedding venue at the old county school at Penrallt, Llangefni.
The application is a balance between heritage, conservation and economic

Page 2



regeneration. The aim is to bring the most recognisable building in Llangefni to use
whilst celebrating its historic history and character. The Penrallt site has been
closed since the Coleg Menai campus was closed in 2019. The site is prominent
within the Conservation Area of Llangefni and includes a Grade Il Listed War
Memorial which will remain central to this project. The conservation work and the
history of the memorial will be conducted with the highest respect and ensuring that
the historical and social significant is recognised and understood. The
development will include 13 ensuite bedrooms, a wedding and events hall for up to
200 people, sensitive improvements to the landscape and a car park and a strong
focus on sustainability including electric charging points, bicycle storage together
with an energy efficient system. He noted that 26 guests will be accommodated
overnight whilst weddings and other events will attract more visitors to the town.
This will attract more business for hotels, cafes and shops in the area. Work will be
undertaken with Plas Arthur Leisure Centre to encourage visitors to make use of
the local amenities. Mr Evans further said that the development will create at least
14 full time and 6 part-time employment and will give further opportunities for local
suppliers such as chefs, florists and photographers. The building work and
decorators will prioritise local contractors ensuring that the local investment
supports the economy. The proposed development has been carefully designed to
respect and improve the historical context of the site. The original stone structure,
the notable windows and the Dutch style cable end will be kept and restored. The
proposed extensions will be in keeping ensuring that the character of the building
continues to contribute positively to Conservation Area. The landscape plan also
recognises the importance of the mature trees around the site and the area around
the War Memorial. The improvements to the site will restore the historical
relationship between the building and the Memorial in line with best practice with
conservation. He further said that this project affords a sustainable future for a
local landmark which is important for the community, and it safeguards the history
of Penrallt, creates local employment and will help the local economy.

The Team Leader reported that the proposal is for the re-development of the former
County School building at Penrallt, Llangefni which was thereafter used by Grwp
Llandillo Menai as a satellite campus before becoming vacant. The building is
located within the Conservation Area, and a Grade |l listed War Memorial is located
on the front lawn of the building. The application site is located within the
development boundary of Llangefni and Planning Authority considers that planning
policy CYF6 is the most relevant policy in considering the application. Planning
Policy TWR 2 is also relevant as it includes developments of hotels. With regard to
planning policy CYFG6 it is considered that the scale and nature of the development
is acceptable in this location. Consideration must be given to the existing and last
use of the building, which was used as a learning centre for students, which falls
within Use Class D1. The last use of the building is important and is a material
consideration, D1 uses would include uses such as medical or health services,
creche, day nurseries, museum, library, public hall or places of worship. A Wedding
Venue does not have a dedicated Use Class and would be considered as a unique
use. When considering the last use of the building, it is not considered that a
Wedding Venue would cause any more impact than the existing use of the building
and any other uses that could be carried out under a D1 use. It is not considered
that the proposed use would conflict with nearby uses, which primarily comprises of
residential dwellings, a school and a leisure centre. Consequently, the proposal

Page 3



accords with criterion 2 of planning policy CYF 6. The proposal involves the use of
an existing building, one part of the existing building will be demolished, and an
extension will be constructed in its place. The building appears structurally sound,
and most important, will bring an existing building back into use. It is considered
that the proposal accords with relevant provisions within criterion 2 of planning
policy CYF6. The consideration of planning policy TWR 2 is similar to policy CYF®6.
The policy refers that there should not be an over concentration of holiday
accommodation in the area and data shows that there are only 1.73% of such uses
in the area. It is therefore considered that the proposal complies with planning
policy TWR 2.

She further said that the building has remained vacant for a considerable period,
resulting in its gradual deterioration to the detriment of the character of the
surrounding area, with boarded up windows and the rear elevation becoming
overgrown. lIts re-development would present a valuable opportunity to bring a
long-term underused site back into use, enhancing the appearance of the locality,
supporting the local economy and contributing positively to the Conservation Area.
The proposal will create 14 full time employment and 6 part time employment. The
proposal is to demolish a modern extension to the Southeast which covers a total of
198-meter square over two floors. The proposed extension to the Southeast will
cover a total area of 373-meter square which is a total increase of 175-meter
square. The extension is a modern yet respectful extension that has been
designed to bring in original features of the building to the front elevation. Itis
important to note that the front elevation is the most important part of the building,
and it was of paramount importance to retain existing features, whilst ensuring that
the extension would bring a modern but respectful extension to the side elevation.
Whilst the new extension will be 175-meter square larger than the existing
extension, it is considered that there is adequate space available within the site as
well as use of high-quality materials to ensure the development fits in with the site
and surrounding area. The application site is located within the Llangefni
Conservation Area with a War Memorial located in the grounds of the former school
which is a Grade Il Listed Building. The proposal shows that the existing features
are to be retained, and the new extension has been designed to complement the
existing features of the original building. The impact on the amenities of adjacent
properties will need to be considered within planning policy PCYFF 2. The Local
Planning Authority have consulted with the Environmental Health Section in relation
to the noise nuisance concerns raised by neighbouring properties. The
Environmental Health Section have raised no objection to the proposal and has
confirmed that a Noise Assessment would not be required. Furthermore, events
would also be subject to separate licencing requirements and conditions and any
noise complaints which may be made can be investigated by Environmental Health
under the Statutory Nuisance provisions. It was important to note the existing use
of the building and potential uses that could be made of the building without the
need for planning permission. Consideration has also been given to the location of
the building which include a busy highway to the North and East of the site, a
leisure centre and 3G all-weather pitch located to the rear of Plas Arthur Leisure
Centre, which is open until late evening, a skatepark to the West of Penrallt and the
Ysgol Gyfun Llangefni. Due to location, nearby uses and the current use of the
building, it is not considered that the proposal will have a negative impact upon
adjacent residential properties or uses. The application was accompanied by a

Page 4



Protected Species Survey and there was no visible evidence of bats within the
location of the site. The proposal includes biodiversity enhancements which
includes a Wildflower meadow, birds and bats boxes and existing grass areas are
to be retained with 80 native shrubs will be planted. She further said that the
existing access is to be used, and parking facilities will be located to the rear of the
site. The existing pedestrian access to the West of the site will not be affected by
the proposal. A Transport Assessment was submitted with the planning application
which confirms that the proposal will provide 44 parking spaces, this includes 20
staff parking, 13 Hotel Guests and a further 11 remaining spaces. The Transport
Assessment identifies that people would be expected to travel primarily by private
coach and car, and the public transport provides a realistic alternative. Itis
anticipated that the building would accommodate 200 guests at peak times, likely to
be concentrated on weekends and evenings. The site is in a highly sustainable
location within easy reach of public transport. The Highways Authority has
confirmed that they are satisfied with parking and access arrangements and have
recommended appropriate highway conditions. The proposal to change the use of
the existing learning centre which is a D1 Use Class to a Wedding Venue is
considered to comply with all policies as noted in the report. The proposal will not
impact on the Welsh language or residential properties. The Highways Authority
are satisfied with the access and parking arrangements, and the proposal will not
impact the nearby listed structure. The proposal respects the architectural style of
the building and will bring an unused building back into use which will be a positive
contribution towards the area and the Conservation Area. The proposal also
includes sufficient biodiversity enhancements in accordance with local and national
policies. The recommendation was of approval of the application.

Councillor Geraint Bebb and a Local Member ascertained as to whom will be
responsible for the War Memorial on the site and whether there will be a condition
that the owners of the site will have to maintain the Memorial. The Legal Advisor
said that the Local Planning Authority will need to consider whether the proposal
will impact the Listed War Memorial and whether a condition would be reasonable
to be attached to any approval of the application. Members of the Committee
considered that there is a requirement for the War Memorial to be maintained and
that families of the deceased should be allowed to pay their respects at the
memorial.

Councillor Geraint Bebb further ascertained whether there is adequate parking
attached to the proposed development as it is stated within the report that the
venue will be able to cater for 200 people. He noted there is no parking available
for additional vehicles at Plas Arthur Leisure Centre. He further raised that there is
no mention within the biodiversity element of the application to the protection of red
squirrels. The Team Leader responded that there will be 44 parking spaces
available on site and the D1 class relates to the previous use of the site must be
considered. She noted that the area is a sustainable area, and people are
expected to use public transport, and the Highways Authority are satisfied with the
parking arrangements on the site.

Councillor Euryn Morris said that he welcomed the proposal to bring back a building

that has been empty for several years. He ascertained whether a condition could
be imposed on any approval of the application as regards to noise nuisance due to

Page 5



the concerns of the neighbouring properties. The Team Leader responded that the
Environmental Health Section have confirmed that the owners of the building would
need a separate events licence and any noise complaints which may be made can
be investigated by Environmental Health under the Statutory Nuisance provisions.

Councillor Geraint Bebb proposed that the application be approved in accordance
with the Officer's recommendation.

Councillor Jackie Lewis seconded the proposal of approval of the application.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s
recommendation subject to the planning conditions contained within the
report.

12. 2 LBC/2025/24 - Listed Building Consent to mount a plaque at Plas
Alltran, 3 Turkey Shore Road, Holyhead

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the
development is in the ownership of the Council.

The Team Leader reported that the application is for Listed Building Consent to
mount a blue plaque on the building to commemorate the building as the birthplace
of Captain John Fox-Russell MC VC and Captain Henry Thornbury Fox-Russell MC
who fought in the Great War. The addition of the plaque will increase public
awareness of the building’s wider place within Holyhead’s history. The plaque will
be erected between the windows of the ground and first floor of the building and will
be circular and measuring 950mm in diameter. The Heritage Officer has not raised
any objection to the proposal as it will not be detrimental to the character of the
building. The application for listed building consent, submitted by the Council on
land in their ownership, will need to be determined by Welsh Governments’
Planning Division.

Councillor Glyn Haynes proposed that the application be approved in accordance
with the Officer's recommendation. Councillor Jackie Lewis seconded the proposal
of approval.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s
recommendation subject to the listed building consent by Welsh Government
Planning Division as the land is in the ownership of the Council.

12.3 CAC/2025/3 — Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of existing
building, erection of temporary hoarding together with the creation of new
public realm including hard and soft landscaping, sustainable drainage
systems and supporting infrastructure and works at 97 Market Street,
Holyhead

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the
application is submitted by the Council.

Page 6



The Team Leader reported that the application is made for Conservation Area
Consent for the demolition of the existing building, erection of temporary hoarding
together with the creation of a new public realm including hard and soft
landscaping, sustainable drainage systems and supporting infrastructure and
works. The application site comprises 97 Market Street, the United Ex-
Servicemen’s Club, which is a building located at the junction of Market Street and
Victoria Road and lies within the Holyhead Central Conservation Area. The
application is for the demolition of the building at 97 Market Street, and an
application has been submitted (FPL/2025/208) to redevelop the site and will be
submitted to the Planning and Orders Committee in due course. The existing
buildings are of low historic significance and of poor architectural and build quality.
Consequently, the principle of their demolition is not opposed providing that the
replacement development preserves or enhances the character of the conservation
area and to respect the setting of the listed buildings nearby. The application will
need to be determined by Welsh Governments’ Planning Division as part of the site
is owned by the Council.

Councillor Glyn Haynes proposed that the application be approved in accordance
with the Officer's recommendation. Councillor Kenneth P Hughes seconded the
proposal of approval.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s
recommendation subject to the consent by Welsh Government Planning
Division as the application is within a conservation area and is submitted by
the Council.

12.4 ADV/2025/7 — Application for the temporary siting of advertisement
panels in relation to the redevelopment of the site at 91-97 Market Street,
Holyhead

The application was presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as it involves
a development which is being carried out by the Council.

The Team Leader reported that the application is for the temporary siting of
advertisement panels in relation to the redevelopment of the site. The proposal is
to install hoarding panels along the whole site perimeter, with 10 identical
advertisement panels equally distributed along the hoarding. The hoarding panels
will be around 2.4m in height and 1.2m wide. The hoarding panels will be yellow,
with each advertising the project and an image of the proposed public amenities
space with bilingual text outlining the proposed development. The proposal
complies with planning policy PS 1 of the Joint Local Development Plan. This is a
temporary consent linked to the redevelopment of the site, with condition attached
that the panels need to be removed before the 1 November, 2028 or following
completion of the development. The hoarding panels will be erected around the
site perimeter, with all pavements around the site remaining unaffected. The
Highways Authority have no objection to the proposal as it will not impact on
highway and pedestrian networks in the area. The panels will ensure the safety of
the public during the redevelopment of the site.

Page 7



13

Councillor Glyn Haynes proposed that the application be approved in accordance
with the Officer's recommendation. Councillor Geraint Bebb seconded the proposal
of approval.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s
recommendation subject to the planning conditions contained within the
report.

OTHER MATTERS

13.1 DEM/2025/2 — Application to determine whether prior approval is
required for the demolition of garages at Ger y Graig, Llangefni

It was noted that the application was to be permitted development under Part 31 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995.

COUNCILLOR KEN TAYLOR
CHAIR

Page 8



Agenda Item 11

Planning Committee: 03/12/2025 1.1

Application Reference: FPL/2025/240
Applicant: Dr Elsbeth lorwerth

Description: Full application for the change of use of a dwelling (Use Class C3) into a dentist and health
clinic (Use Class D1) at

Site Address: 32 High Street, Menai Bridge

Trem y Gamedd

(Mountain View)

Shingle

Craig-Msir
uw Banger) /' /

Llys Tegla

© Hawlfraint Y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2025 Arolwg Ordnans AG0000825374. Fe'ch caniateir | ddefnyddio'r data |
hwn er mwyn eich galluogi chi | ymateb i, neu ryngweithio gyda, y sefydliad a ddarparodd chi &'r data. Ni chaniateir i chi| 7
gopio, is-drwyddedu, dosbarthu na gwerthu unrhyw ran o'r data hwn i drydydd parti ar unrhyw ffurf. 3

NN SR

© Crown copyright and database righls 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0D00825374. You are permitted to use this data |/
solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
ermitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (Joanne Roberts)
Recommendation: Permit

Reason for Reporting to Committee

The applicant is related to a ‘relevant officer’ as defined within paragraph 4.6.10.2 of the Constitution.

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.4 of
the Constitution.

Page 9



Proposal and Site

The proposal is for the change of use of a dwelling (Use Class C3) into a dentist and health clinic (Use
Class D1) at 32 High Street, Menai Bridge.

The property is located within the development boundary and the town centre boundary but is not within
the Primary Retail Area of the Local Service Centre of Menai Bridge as defined in the JLDP. The
application is also within the designated Conservation Area.

Key Issues

The key issues are whether the proposal is in compliance with local and national planning policies.
Policies

Joint Local Development Plan

Strategic Policy PS 5: Sustainable Development

Strategic Policy PS 4: Sustainable Transport, Development and Accessibility

Strategic Policy PS 15: Town Centres and Retail

Strategic Policy PS 19: Conserving and Where Appropriate Enhancing the Natural Environment
Strategic Policy PS 20: Preserving and where Appropriate Enhancing Heritage Assets
Strategic Policy PS 1: Welsh Language and Culture

Policy PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

Policy PCYFF 3: Design and Place Shaping

Policy PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

Policy TRA 4: Managing Transport Impacts

Policy TRA 2: Parking Standards

Policy MAN 1: Proposed Town Centre Developments

Policy AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens

Policy AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment (2008)
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities -
July 2019

Technical Advice Note 12: Design (2016)

Technical Advice Note 18: Transport (2007)

Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (2017)
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)

Response to Consultation and Publicity

Consultee Response

Draenio / Drainage No flood risk. SuDS advice.

Priffyrdd a Trafnidiaeth / Highways and

Transportation No objection.

Comments/advice in relation to relevant policy

Polisi Cynllunio / Planning Policy framework

Page 10



Ymgynghorydd Ecolegol ac Amgylcheddol /

Ecological and Environmental Advisor Comments/advice regarding ecology/biodiveristy.

Comments/advice regarding relevant

lechyd yr Amgylchedd / Environmental Health environmental considerations.

Ymgynghorydd Treftadaeth / Heritage Advisor No built heritage comments.

Cynghorydd Sonia Williams No response at the time of writing the report.
Cynghorydd Robin Wyn Williams No response at the time of writing the report.
Cynghorydd Dyfed Wyn Jones No response at the time of writing the report.

Cyngor Tref Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge Town

Council No response at the time of writing the report.

The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were the posting of personal notification
letters to the occupiers of the neighbouring properties and the publication of an advert in the local press.
The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 19/11/2025. At the time of writing this report no
representations had been received.

Relevant Planning History
None.

Main Planning Considerations
Introduction

The application is made for the change of use of a dwelling (Use Class C3) into a dentist and health clinic
(Use Class D1) at 32 High St, Menai Bridge.

The property is located within the development boundary and the town centre boundary for Menai Bridge
as defined in the JLDP. The site is not within the Primary Retail Area. The application is also within the
designated Conservation Area.

Main Policy Considerations

Strategic Policy PS 15 of the JLDP seeks to protect and enhance the vitality and viability of town centres
and their retail, service and social functions. Menai Bridge is recognised as a Local Retail Centre within the
settlement hierarchy contained in Policy PS 15. A diverse mix of suitable uses is encouraged within high
quality urban centres and attracts a wide range of people at different times of the day. Therefore, within
town centres a mixture of suitable uses, including the proposed use (D2), is encouraged and complies with
policy MAN 1: Proposed Town Centre Developments which states that:

“Proposals for new retail, commercial and leisure development will be directed towards town centres, as
shown on the Proposals Maps, in the first instance, provided that they are of a scale and type appropriate
to the size, character and function of the centre in the retail hierarchy set out in Policy PS 12.

Proposals for new retail, commercial and leisure development proposals within town centres defined on the
Proposals Maps will be granted provided they conform to the following criteria:

They enhance the attractiveness, vitality and viability of the town centre,

The proposal, either individually or cumulatively, does not undermine the retail role of the centre;
The proposed use is in keeping with adjacent uses;

The proposed does not create an excessive amount of dead frontages.”

Aobdb~

Page 11



Paragraph 6.3.100 of the JLDP states that the vitality, viability and attractiveness of the town centres
identified in the plan can be maintained and enhanced by ensuring that town centres identified in the retail
hierarchy remain the primary focus for a wide range of town centre uses including (A1, A2 and A3),
commercial and public offices (B1), community facilities and institutions (D1) and entertainment and leisure
(D2).

These latter types of town centre uses (B1, D1 and D2) will be encouraged to locate within identified town
centres, but outside the identified Primary Retail Areas.

It is considered that the proposal will enhance the attractiveness, vitality and viability of the town centre, is
in keeping with adjacent uses, would not undermine the retail role of the centre and would not create dead
frontages. In addition the site is not within the Primary Retail Area therefore the proposal is considered to
be acceptable and accords with policy MAN 1 of the JLDP.

Design & Impact

Policy PCYFF3 relates to Design and Place Shaping and requires that all proposals will be expected to
demonstrate high quality design which fully takes into account the natural, historic and built environmental
context and contributes to the creation of attractive sustainable places. Innovative and energy efficient
design will be particularly encouraged. Proposals, including extensions and alterations to existing
buildings and structures will only be permitted provided they conform to all the criteria in the policy where
relevant.

No external alterations are proposed as part of the development and therefore accords with policies
PCYFF 3 & AT 1.

Ecology & Biodiversity

Policy AMG 5 of the JLDP relates to Local Biodiversity Conservation and states that proposals must
protect and, where appropriate, enhance biodiversity that has been identified as being important to the
local area.

The updated advice in Chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) is to apply a step-wise approach to
maintain and enhance biodiversity, build resilient ecological networks, and deliver net benefits for
biodiversity. The first priority is to avoid damage to biodiversity in its widest sense and ecosystem
functioning. Where there may be harmful environmental effects, planning authorities will need to be
satisfied that any reasonable alternative sites (including alternative siting and design options) that would
result in less harm, no harm or benefit have been fully considered.

The application includes a Green Infrastructure Statement and includes appropriate biodiversity
enhancement, comprising a bird box is proposed as part of the proposal.

It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of impact on ecology and biodiversity
and complies with the requirements of Policy AMG5, the Section 6 Duty of the Environment Wales Act
2016 and the latest changes to Chapter 6 of PPW.

Highways

The Highways Department have been consulted on the proposal and have raised no objection due to the
sustainable location of the proposal and availability of public car parks nearby.

Welsh Language

In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 Local Planning Authorities have a duty when making a
decision on a planning application to have regard to the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that

Page 12



application. This is further supported by para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12) together with
Technical Advice Note 20.

The 'Maintaining Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
(adopted July 2019) provides further guidance on how Welsh language considerations are expected to be
incorporated into all relevant developments.

It is noted that there are certain types of developments where the proposal will require a Welsh Language
Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment Report. Thresholds for when a Statement / Report is
expected to be submitted are highlighted in Policy PS1 of the JLDP together with Diagram 5 of the SPG.
This proposal does not meet these thresholds.

Guidance on the types of relevant applications where the Welsh language needs to be considered is
given in Appendix 5 (Screening Procedure) of the SPG (part D to F). The guidance contained in Appendix
5 states that all retail, commercial or industrial developments which do not require the submission of a
Welsh Language Statement / Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the
language.

Sufficient information has been provided as part of the planning application to satisfy the requirements of
the policy in relation to the Welsh language considerations.

Conclusion

The proposal is considered to be acceptable and accords with relevant development plan policies.
Recommendation

That the application is permitted subject to the following conditions:

(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of (five) years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
(02) The premises shall only be used for as a dental surgery and health clinic and for no other
purpose specified in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
order 1987 (as amended) (or any Order re-voking or re-enacting that Order).

Reason: To define the scope of this permission.

(03) The bird box shall be installed as noted on the proposed floor plan prior to the use of the
development hereby approved, and thereafter shall be retained as such for the lifetime of the
development hereby approved.

Reason: To ensure the proposal provides biodiversity enhancements in accordance with Policy AMGS5.
(04) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details
shown on the plans below, contained in the form of application and in any other documents
accompanying such application unless included within any provision of the conditions of this

planning permission:

e Location Plan
e Proposed Floor Plans
¢ Green Infrastructure Statement

Reason: To ensure that the development is implemented in accord with the approved details.

Page 13



The development plan covering Anglesey is the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan
(2017). The following policies were relevant to the consideration of this application: PS1, PS4, PS5,
PS15, PS19, PS20, PCYFF1, PCYFF2, MAN1, AT1, AMGS5.

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) before

the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the
heart of the permission/development.

Page 14



Agenda Item 12

Planning Committee: 03/12/2025 12.1

Application Reference: HHP/2025/93
Applicant: Aeddan Berry

Description: Full application for the construction of a vehicular access together with creating a parking
area at

Site Address: Smyrna Chapel, Glanhwfa Road, Llangefni.

| Eisubsm
Meusdd

| Yot ¢
[ Town Helly )

SAFLE/SITE [

| 2\ GRADDFA| SCALE 1:2500.

A / V] L E 71
@ Hawlfraint Y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2025 Arolwg Ordnans ACD000825374. Fe'ch caniateir | ddefnyddio'r data
hwn er mwyn eich galluogi chi i ymateb i, neu ryngweithio gyda. y sefydliad a ddarparodd chi &'r data. Ni chaniateir i chi
gopio, is-drwyddedu, dosbarthu na gwerthu unrhyw ran o'r data hwn i drydydd parti ar unrhyw ffurf.

® Crown copyright and dalabase rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACDD00825374. You are permitied to use this data
solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-license. distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (Gwen Jones)
Recommendation: Refuse
Reason for Reporting to Committee

The planning application has been presented to the Planning and Orders Committee on the request of the
Local Member due to local concerns and highway safety.

Proposal and Site

This is a full application for the construction of a new vehicular access together with creating a parking
area at Capel Smyrna, Glanhwfa Road, Llangefni.

Page 15



Key Issues

Policy Consideration

Highway Safety

Listed Building/Conservation Area
Impact on Adjacent Uses

Ecology and Green Infrastructure

Policies
Joint Local Development Plan

Strategic Policy PS 4: Sustainable Transport, Development and Accessibility

Policy TRA 2: Parking Standards

Policy TRA 4: Managing Transport Impacts

Strategic Policy PS 5: Sustainable Development

Policy PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

Policy PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

Policy PCYFF 3: Design and Place Shaping

Policy PCYFF 4: Design and Landscaping

Strategic Policy PS 20: Preserving and where Appropriate Enhancing Heritage Assets

Policy AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens

Strategic Policy PS 19: Conserving and Where Appropriate Enhancing the Natural Environment
Policy AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)

Technical Advice Note 18: Transport (2007)
Technical Advice Note 24: The Historic Environment (2017)

Response to Consultation and Publicity

Consultee Response

Approval recommended subject to a condition that
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water no surface water is to be drained directly or
indirectly into the public sewerage system.

Confirmation that the proposal will not have any

Ymgynghorydd Treftadaeth / Heritage Advisor impact upon the Listed Building or Conservation
Area.

Priffyrdd a Trafnidiaeth / Highways and Recommendation of Refusal due to highway

Transportation safety.

Cynhorydd Geraint Ap Ifan Bebb No response.

Call in request due to local concerns and highway

Cynghorydd Nicola Roberts
concerns.

Concerns raised on Highway Safety especially if

Cyngor Tref Llangefni Town Council cars reverse onto the public highway.

Confirmation that the site is not within any flood
Draenio / Drainage zones and no history of flooding within the
application site.

Page 16



The proposal has been advertised through the distribution of personal letters of notification to the
occupiers of neighbouring properties and a notice was also placed in the local newspaper. The latest date
for the receipt of any representation was the 23/7/23. At the time of writing this report, no letters of
representation had been received at the department.

Relevant Planning History

FPL/2024/153 - Full application for the conversion of the school hall into a dwelling together with the
conversion of part of the Chapel into office space (Use Class B1) at - Capel Smyrna, Lon Glanhwfa,
Llangefni — Permit 11/10/24

LBC/2024/11 — Listed Building Consent for the Conversion of Capel Smyrna school hall into a 2 bedroom
dwelling together with the removal of pew seating to allow bookbinding station and studio desks at Capel
Smyrna, Lon Glanhwfa, Llangefni - Permit 02/09/2024

LBC/2025/15 - Listed Building Consent for minor external alterations to the old Schoolhouse at Capel
Smyrna, Lon Glanhwfa, Llangefni — Permit 25/7/25

Main Planning Considerations
Policy Consideration

This planning application is for the construction of a new vehicular access and creating a new parking
area; therefore, the following are the main relevant policies:-

Policy TRA2: Parking Standards states that parking provision for all modes of transport should be in
accordance with the Council’s Parking Standards.

Policy TRA4: Managing Transport Impacts states that proposals should be planned and designed in a
manner that promotes the most sustainable modes of transport and that proposals that would cause
unacceptable harm to the safe and efficient operation of the highway will be refused.

In line with Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Note 18: Transport, the demand for parking
spaces for cars should be managed and the parking provision for other modes of transport, such as
cycling, should be encouraged.

Highway Safety

The Highways Authority has given careful consideration to the proposal in terms of Highway Safety. The
Highways Authority was initially supportive of the application; however, after further consideration the
Highways Authority has confirmed that they cannot support the construction of a new vehicular access
due to safety concerns.

The proposed access would be directly onto the Class A highway, which forms one of the principal
approaches into Llangefni from the South. The highway in front of Capel Smyrna carries a high volume of
traffic, service and delivery vehicles, and functions as a key distributor within the local highway

network. The highway narrows within close proximity of the proposed access, and this would pose a
substantial risk of conflict with through-traffic. Vehicles attempting to enter or exit the site would be doing
so at a location where road users are already required to negotiate priority movements. This would
undermine the safe and free flow of traffic along this strategic route.

The proposed development does not have sufficient space within the site to accommodate manouvering,
this would result in cars not being able to enter and exit in a forward gear. If cars were to reverse onto the
highway this would restrict visibility be detrimental to pedestrian and highway safety. This would be a
fundamental requirement, particularly on classified roads such as this section of Glanhwfa Road.

Page 17



Vehicles approaching from the North (town centre direction) would need to reverse into the car parking
area to avoid reversing out. However, reversing into a narrow access from a heavily trafficked A class
road would be impractical and unsafe. It is foreseen that vehicles would enter the car parking spaces in a
forward gear and would result in vehicles reversing onto the highway. The Highway Authority notes that
all other properties along this section of Glanhwfa Road are served by accesses which provide turning
facilities, ensuring that vehicles are able to egress in a forward gear. The creation of a new access
without such provision would be inconsistent with the established standard and would be detrimental to
highway safety.

Whilst the applicant has sought to demonstrate compliance with Technical Advice Note 18 guidance by
providing visibility splays of 2.4m x 45m in each direction this does not overcome the fundamental safety
concerns raised above. The visibility splays are based on vehicles entering and exiting in a forward
gear. The reality of vehicles reversing out from the proposed access means that drivers would be
manouvering with restricted rearward vision and at a greater risk of conflict with both pedestrians and
passing vehicles.

Listed Building/Conservation Area

The Smyrna Congregational Chapel and Hall are Grade Il Listed Buildings. The building dates back to
1903 is set back slightly from the West side of Glanhwfa Road, Opposite Shire Hall.

Listed Building Consent has been granted for minor external works under LBC/2025/15 on the 25th July
2025.

The Heritage Officer confirmed that the external works would be minor interventions and would not harm
the character or setting of the heritage asset with the re-instatement works being sympathetic and the
proposal therefore complies with Strategic Policy PS20 and Policy AT1 of the JLDP.

It is acknowledged that the building is a Grade Il Listed Building and the importance of bringing the
building back into use; however, the construction of a new vehicular access would have a significant
impact upon the safety of pedestrian and highway safety. It is not considered that there is a justifiable
need for the access in order to develop the building. The site is located in a very sustainable location with
ample car parking spaces within the town centre.

Impact on Adjacent Uses

Criteria 7 of Policy PCYFF 2: Development Criteria states that planning permission will be refused where
the proposed development would have an unacceptable adverse impact on the health, safety or amenity
of occupiers of local residences, other land and property uses or characteristics of the locality due to
increased activity, disturbance, vibration, noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, or other forms
of pollution or nuisance.

It is considered that the proposal would be detrimental to pedestrian safety as cars reversing onto the
highway would conflict with pedestrians. This would be contrary to the provisions of Policy PCYFF2.

Ecology and Green Infrastructure

Strategic Policy PS19 and Policy AMG5 of the JLDP states that proposals must enhance biodiversity.
The updated advice in Chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) is to apply a step-wise approach to
maintain and enhance biodiversity, build resilient ecological networks, and deliver net benefits for
biodiversity. The first priority is to avoid damage to biodiversity in its widest sense and ecosystem
functioning. Where there may be harmful environmental effects, planning authorities will need to be
satisfied that any reasonable alternative sites (including alternative siting and design options) that would
result in less harm, no harm or benefit have been fully considered.

Page 18



The applicant has provided a Green Infrastructure Statement (GIS) which states that a wildflower
meadow is to be created to the rear of Capel Smyrna. A condition will be placed on the permission to
ensure that the wildflower meadow is completed within the first planting season following the use of the
access hereby approved being first brought into use.

The proposal complies with Strategic Policy PS19, policy AMGS5 and the advice contained within PPW.
Conclusion

The proposal for the construction of a vehicular access together with creating a parking area would be
detrimental to Highway and Pedestrian Safety for reasons set out in the main body of the report. The
proposal is contrary to Policy TRA4, PCYFF2 and Technical Advice Note 18

Recommendation

That the application is refused for the following reason:

(01)The Local Planning Authority considers that the construction of a new vehicular access and

parking area would be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety contrary to Policy TRA4 and
PCYFF2 of the Joint Local Development Plan and Technical Advice Note 18.

Page 19



Planning Committee: 03/12/2025 12.2
Application Reference: HHP/2025/151
Applicant: P Jensen

Description: Full application for the erection of a balcony, together with the erection of a garage at

Site Address: Ty Hen Efail, Llanddona.

SAFLE / SITE

GRﬁFA / SCALE 1:2500

e

@ Hawlfraint Y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2025 Arolwg Ordnans ACD000825374. Fe'ch caniateir | ddefnyddio'r data

hwn er mwyn eich galluogi chi i ymateb i, neu ryngweithio gyda, y sefydliad a ddarparodd chi 3'r data. Ni chaniateir i chi
gopio, is-drwyddedu, dosbarthu na gwerthu unrhyw ran o'r data hwn i drydydd parti ar unrhyw ffurf.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374. You are permitted to use this data
solely 1o enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (Cai Gruffydd)
Recommendation: Permit

Reason for Reporting to Committee

The application is called to the Planning and Order Committee at the request of the Local Member Clir
Carwyn Jones. The reason being the proposed balcony would overlook directly into the neighbouring

property, causing privacy concerns.

Proposal and Site

The existing dwelling is a two-storey detached property located just outside the development boundary of
Llanddona, as defined in the Joint Local Development Plan. The site is also located within the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Page 20



The proposal consists of erecting a first floor balcony on the Eastern elevation of the existing dwelling,
and erecting a new garage at the front Eastern side of the site next to the existing access.

Key Issues

The key issues are whether the proposed scheme is acceptable, whether it complies with current policies,
and whether the proposed development would have any negative impacts on the area or any

neighbouring properties.
Policies

Joint Local Development Plan

AMG 1: Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation
PCYFF 2: Development Criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and Place Shaping

Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 2023 — 2028

Supplementary Planning Guidance:

SPG - Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment (2008)

Planning Policy Wales 12th Edition

Technical Advice Note:

TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
TAN 12: Design (2016)

Response to Consultation and Publicity

Consultee

Response

Priffyrdd a Trafnidiaeth / Highways and
Transportation

No objections.

Ymgynghorydd Ecolegol ac Amgylcheddol /
Ecological and Environmental Advisor

No objections.

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water

No objections - condition requested stating no
surface water shall be allowed to drain directly or
indirectly into the public sewerage system.

Cyngor Cymuned Llanddona Community Council

No objection to the proposed garage, however
objecting to the proposed balcony due to privacy
and overlooking concerns.

Cynghorydd Carwyn Jones

Called the application into the planning committee
— the reason being the proposed balcony would
overlook directly into the neighbouring property,
causing privacy concerns.

Cynghorydd Alun Roberts

No response.

Cynghorydd Gary Pritchard

No response.

Ymgynghorydd Tirwedd / Landscape Advisor

No response.

Page 21




The proposal has been advertised through the distribution of personal letters of notification to the
occupiers of neighbouring properties. The latest date for the receipt of any representation was the
17/10/2025. At the time of writing this report, one letter and four web comments of representation had
been received at the department.

The objections were all similar in relation to what concerned the local people of Llanddona. Below, all the
concerns raised from the letter and web comments have been split into three main categories:

Privacy concerns.
Effects on biodiversity.
Highway concerns.

The first concern emphasized that the proposed balcony would overlook directly into the neighbouring
property, causing privacy concerns. This will be discussed in greater detail in the report.

The second concern stressed that the proposal would have a negative impact on biodiversity, resulting in
a loss of habitat, and increasing flood risks in the area. Regarding the impacts on biodiversity, updated
Japanese Knotweed Management Plans were submitted as part of this application due to the boundary
fence being altered and expanded into potentially untreated locations to accommodate the proposed
garage. The ecologist was satisfied with the information provided in the updated Management Plan, and a
condition will be implemented with the decision ensuring the that no development shall commence until, a
validation report certified by an independent consultant shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
for approval confirming that the knotweed treatment programme has been successful and that all of the
invasive plant material has been removed and that all treated areas shall be subject to aftercare and
monitoring in accordance with the submitted scheme. Regarding the potential increase to the flood risks
in the area, the development is not considered highly vulnerable, therefore it is not considered the
proposal will increase the harm on flooding.

The third concern stated that a Construction Traffic Management Plan should be submitted as part of the
application due to previous problems during the construction phase with previous permission RM/2020/8.
The Highway Authority was consulted on this application, and they do not deem that this proposal will
have an effect on the local highway network, and are satisfied with the proposal.

Relevant Planning History

22C231 - Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi dau annedd yn cynnwys manylion llawn am yr mynedfa i gerbydau
ar dir gyferbyn a / Outline application for the erection of two dwellings together with full details of the
vehicular access on land opposite Pen Y Bont, Llanddona. Caniatau / Permit - 14/06/2017.

RM/2020/8 - Cais am faterion a gadwyd yn 0l ar gyfer codi dwy annedd ynghyd a creu fynedfa i gerbydau
ar dir gyferbyn / Application for reserved matters for the erection of two dwellings together with the
construction of a vehicular access on land opposite Pen Y Bont, Llanddona. Caniatau / Permit -
27/11/2020.

DIS/2022/47 - Cais i ryddhau amod (02) (Cynllun Rheoli Traffic Adeiladu) o ganiatadd materion a gadwyd
yn 6l rhif RM/2020/8 (faterion a gadwyd yn 6l ar gyfer codi dwy annedd) ac amodau (06) (troedffordd) a
(16) (draenio dwr gwyneb) o ganiatad cynllunio 22C231 (cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi dau annedd) yn /
Application to discharge condition (02) (Construction Traffic Management Plan) of reserved matters
approval ref RM/2020/8 (reserved matters for the erection of two dwellings) and conditions (06) (footway)
and (16) (surface water drainage) of planning permission ref 22C231 (outline application for the erection
of two dwellings) at Pen Y Bont, Llanddona. Amod wedi ei Ryddhau / Condition Discharged - 16/08/2022.

Main Planning Considerations

The main planning considerations are whether the proposal complies with current policies, and whether
the development would have any negative impacts on the area or any neighbouring properties.

Page 22



The application’s main issues are:

i. Proposed Development.
ii. Siting and Design.
iii. Adjacent Residential Properties.

iv. Impact on Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.
V. Green Infrastructure and Ecology.
vi. Conclusion.

Proposed Development:

The existing dwelling is a two-storey detached property located just outside the development boundary of
Llanddona, as defined in the Joint Local Development Plan. The site is also located within the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

The proposal consists of erecting a first floor balcony on the Eastern elevation of the existing dwelling,
and erecting a new garage at the front Eastern side of the site next to the existing access. The balcony
will measure 2.5 meters in height from ground level, and will extend 1.5 meters out from the first floor of
the existing dwelling, and will measure 4.8 meters in width. The garage will measure 3.5 meters x 6
meters, and will measure 2.2 meters in height to the eaves, and 4.5 meters in height to the pitched roof.

Siting and Design:

Policy PCYFF3 states that the proposal must be expected to demonstrate a high quality design and
should complement and enhance the character and appearance of the site.

The siting is considered acceptable given that the proposed development is situated away from the public
road. The design and appearance are considered acceptable with high quality materials used, and the
balcony would be small in scale and subservient to the existing dwelling. The proposed garage conforms
to the site and its built surroundings, and the design encourages use of materials that compliments the
existing dwelling and surrounding area. The materials include timber cladding and slate roof to match the
existing dwelling. Furthermore, effective biodiversity enhancements have been introduced.

It is considered that the proposed scale of the works is reasonable with the development complimenting
the existing dwelling, and subservient to the existing site. It is considered that the scale of the
development does not have a negative visual impact on the surrounding area.

The garage will be used ancillary to the main dwelling and will not be used for any commercial use
whatsoever. A condition will be placed on the permission to ensure that the use of the garage will be used
incidental to the main dwelling.

Adjacent Residential Properties:

Consideration has been given to the requirements of Policy PCYFF2: Development Criteria to ensure that
the development does not have a negative impact upon the health, safety or amenity of occupiers of local
residences, other land and property uses or characteristics of the locality due to increased activity,
disturbance, vibration, noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, or other forms of pollution or
nuisance.

The application was called into the planning committee by Councillor Carwyn Jones. The reason being
the proposed balcony would overlook directly into neighbouring property, ‘Crosswinds’, causing privacy
concerns. Within a built-up area there will inevitably always be a degree of built development being in
close proximity. A set of indicative minimum distances to prevent overlooking issues are noted in
Guidance Note 8 ‘Proximity of Development’ of the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Design
Guide for the Urban & Rural Environment. The proposed balcony would be situated approximately 38

Page 23



meters away from the neighbouring property, and the proposed garage would be situated approximately
26 meters away from the neighbouring property, which complies with the proximity distances set out in
the SPG. In addition, there is a public road in between the properties acting as an effective intervening
use. Furthermore, the neighbouring property has planted vegetation large in height acting as effective
screening along their front boundary, further preventing any overlooking and privacy impacts. Therefore, it
is considered that the impact on neighbouring properties would be negligible, and as such considered that
the application complies with policy PCYFF 2.

Impact on Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty:

The application site is located just outside the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policy AMG 1 states
that proposals within or affecting the setting and/or significant views into and out of the Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty must, where appropriate, have regard to the relevant Area of outstanding
Natural Beauty Management Plan.

The scale of the proposed development does not negatively impact the surrounding environment and will
not have a negative impact upon the special quality of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Green Infrastructure and Ecology:

The updated advice in Chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) is to apply a step-wise approach to
maintain and enhance biodiversity, build resilient ecological networks, and deliver net benefits for
biodiversity. The first priority is to avoid damage to biodiversity in its widest sense and ecosystem
functioning. Where there may be harmful environmental effects, planning authorities will need to be
satisfied that any reasonable alternative sites (including alternative siting and design options) that would
result in less harm, no harm or benefit have been fully considered.

In accordance with the requirements of Policy AMG 5 of the JLDP and the duty to enhance biodiversity, a
Green Infrastructure Statement was received with the planning application. The proposal includes one bat
box to be installed on the rear elevation of the garage, and one nest cup to be installed on the Western
side elevation of the proposed garage, prior to the use of the development hereby approved.

Furthermore, updated Japanese Knotweed Management Plans were submitted as part of this application
due to the boundary fence being altered and expanded into potentially untreated locations to
accommodate the proposed garage. The ecologist was satisfied with the information provided in the
updated Management Plan, and a condition will be implemented with the decision ensuring the that no
development shall commence until, a validation report certified by an independent consultant shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval confirming that the knotweed treatment programme
has been successful and that all of the invasive plant material has been removed and that all treated
areas shall be subject to aftercare and monitoring in accordance with the submitted scheme.

Conclusion

The proposed development demonstrates high quality design and complements and enhances the
character and appearance of the site. It is not considered that the proposed development will adversely
impact the character of the dwelling or the surrounding Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The proposal
is not considered to have a negative impact upon the amenity of adjacent residential properties due to the
development complying with the proximity distances set out in the SPG, and intervening uses such as the
public road and effective screening. The proposal also offers biodiversity enhancements in accordance
with the requirements of the Environment (Wales) Act and relevant Development Plan polices. It is
considered that the overall design for the proposed scheme complies with the relevant planning policies,
and the recommendation is one of approval.

Recommendation

That the application is permitted subject to the following conditions:

Page 24



(01) The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this decision.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

(02) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details
shown on the plans below, contained in the form of application and in any other documents
accompanying such application unless included within any provision of the conditions of this
planning permission.

A.SITE - Location plan.

A.02.02 Revision A — Proposed garage plans and site plan.

A.02 - Proposed plans.

Green Infrastructure Statement — Revision A.

JKRW1992 — Japanese Knotweed Management Plan by Japanese Knotweed Removal Wales
dated October 30, 2025.

JKRW1992.2 — Japanese Knotweed Management Plan 2 by Japanese Knotweed Removal
Wales dated November 11, 2025,

Reason: To ensure that the development is implemented in accord with the approved details.

(03) One bat box shall be installed on the rear elevation of the garage, and one nest cup shall be
installed on the Western side elevation of the garage, as shown on drawing reference, ‘A.02.02
Revision A’, prior to the use of the development hereby approved, and thereafter shall be retained
as such for the lifetime of the development hereby approved.

Reason: To ensure the proposal provides biodiversity enhancements in accordance with Policy AMGS5.

(04) No surface water from any increase in the roof area of the building /or impermeable surfaces
within its curtilage shall be allowed to drain directly or indirectly to the public sewerage system.

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety
of existing residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to the environment.

(05) The treatment of Japanese Knotweed shall be carried out in accordance with the Japanese
Knotweed Management Plan, report reference ‘'JKRW1992’, by Japanese Knotweed Removal
Wales dated October 30", 2025, and the Japanese Knotweed Management Plan 2, report reference
‘JKRW1992.2’ by Japanese Knotweed Removal Wales dated November 11t", 2025, and in
accordance with the following requirements:

¢ No development shall commence until, a validation report certified by an independent
consultant shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval confirming that
the knotweed treatment programme has been successful and that all of the invasive plant
material has been removed and that all treated areas shall be subject to aftercare and
monitoring in accordance with the submitted scheme.

o Biosecurity measures should be used across the site until it has been confirmed
otherwise by a licenced ecologist report regarding the INNS. Biosecurity measures should
include the washing of all equipment, tyres, shoes before entering site and leaving site -
having appropriate cleaning stations available.

Reason: In the interests of environmental protection and to prevent the spread of Japanese Knotweed.

Page 25



(06) The garage hereby permitted shall only be used as a private garage incidental to the
enjoyment of the dwelling located within the red line of the location plan, and for no commercial
or business use whatsoever.

Reason: In the interest of amenity.

The development plan covering Anglesey is the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan
(2017). The following policies were relevant to the consideration of this application: AMG 1, AMG 5,
PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3.

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) before

the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the
heart of the permission/development.

Page 26



Planning Committee: 03/12/2025 12.3

Application Reference: LUE/2025/30
Applicant: Head of Housing Services

Description: Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for the existing use of operational
development undertaken to implement planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC on land to the east of

Site Address: Cyffordd Star Crossroad, Star

) - /
@ Hawlfraint Y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2025 Arolwg Ordnans ACD000825374. Fe'ch caniateir | ddefnyddio'r data

hwn er mwyn eich galluogi chi | ymateb i, neu ryngweithio gyda, y sefydliad a ddarparodd chi &'r data. Ni chaniateir i chi
gopio, is-drwyddedu, dosbarthu na gwerthu unrhyw ran o'r data hwn i drydydd parti ar unrhyw ffurf.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2026 Ordnance Survey AC0D00825374. You are permitted to use this data
solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not M,
permitted to copy, sub-license. distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (Sion Hughes)
Recommendation: Lawful
Reason for Reporting to Committee

The application is reported to the planning committee as it is made by the Local Authority on Local
Authority owned land.

Proposal and Site
The site is located in the open countryside of the Star area with access afforded via the A5 highway,
which lies to the South of the site and defines its Southern boundary. The site is sandwiched between the

A5 and A55 highways, with the latter forming the Northern boundary of the site. The remaining
boundaries are shared with agricultural land. The site currently consists of a hardcore surface along with

Page 27



a widened vehicular access, with these works having been done in association with permission
41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC.

The application is made for a Certificate of Lawful Use to establish whether or not the works carried out
are sufficient to be considered as a material start in safeguarding permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC.

Key Issues

As the application is made for a Certificate of Lawful use, the proposal is not considered upon its planning
merits but instead upon the evidence submitted and whether or not it is sufficient to discharge the burden
of proof.

Policies

Joint Local Development Plan

No policies applicable.

Response to Consultation and Publicity

Consultee Response

Cynghorydd Sonia Williams No response.
Cynghorydd Robin Wyn Williams No response.
Cynghorydd Dyfed Wyn Jones No response.
ggzaglrl Cymuned Penmynydd a Star Community No response.

Publicity was afforded to the scheme via the posting of personal letters to occupiers of neighbouring
properties, with the latest date for representations to be made being the 03/10/2025. At the time of writing
this report,, no representations had been received from the public.

Relevant Planning History

DIS/2019/18 - Application to discharge condition (04) (statement and accompanying plan which
demonstrates a clear and robust method that mitigates the potential risk of vehicles waiting on the public
highway for someone to come to open the gates) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full
application for the change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces)
for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian
access and pavement together with associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star
Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/19 - Application to discharge condition (15) (updated plans which indicate firmly defined area(s)
of new planting for both hedges and grassland. Furthermore the areas of proposed evergreen hedge be
instead planted with holly and/or beech as a broadleaved alternative closer to native ecology
considerations) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of
agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation
of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with
associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/20 - Application to discharge condition (14) (method statement setting out that all
recommendations described in section 7 of the submitted Ecological Assessment report are adhered to
and adopted) from planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of
agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation

Page 28



of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with
associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/21 - Application to discharge condition (16) (specification for a programme of archaeological
work) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of agricultural
land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new
vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with associated
development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/28 - Application to discharge condition (12) (supporting design calculations for the attenuated
surface water drainage system) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the
change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and
Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement
together with associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged
04/04/2019

41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC - Full application for the change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary
stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation
of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with associated development on land East of Star
Crossroad, Star. Approved 10/10/2018

Main Planning Considerations
Evidence Base

In terms of evidence, the application submission was accompanied by a Planning Statement and
associated Appendices which detailed the date the works were commenced along with a summary of
what works were carried out. The Planning Statement also addresses the discharge of pre
commencement conditions which were required prior to commencing the works.

Permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC was granted on the 10/10/2018 and therefore in accordance with
condition (01) of that consent, a material start would be required to have been made before the
10/10/2023. The planning statement notes that works on site commenced on the 18/02/2020. The
department are not in possession of any evidence which contradicts this information.

Works deemed as a material start is defined under Section 56(4) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990. The Act states as below;

“any work or construction in the course of the erection of a building; any work of demolition of a building;
the digging of a trench which is to contain foundations, or part of the foundations, of a building; the laying
of any underground main or pipes to the foundations, or part of the foundations, or a building or to any
such trench as mentioned above; any operation in the course of laying out or constructing a road or part
of a road, or any change in use of any land which constitutes material development’.

Application 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC included the creation of a new access and was included within the
application description. The evidence provided includes photographs of the new access along with
confirmation that these works were included within those commenced on the 18/02/2020. The department
would again note that they are not aware of or in possession of any evidence which contravenes this.

The original consent included a number of conditions which required to be discharged prior to
commencing works on site. Conditions (04), (12), (14), (15) and (16) were discharged, however it is noted
that conditions (11)(Construction traffic management plan) and (17)(Archaeology works report) were not
discharged prior to commencing the works. Application VAR/2025/42 has been submitted in retrospect to
provide the information required by these conditions and in effect regularise the development. The
information provided was considered acceptable by the relevant consultees and it was additionally stated
by the Legal Advisor that the conditions did not go to the heart of the consent.

Page 29



The department took legal advice on the application which confirmed that the works carried out were
sufficient to secure the consent and thus the Lawful Use Certificate may be granted.

Conclusion

The application provided sufficient evidence to prove that the works carried out were completed within the
relevant time frames stipulated under the previous consent and were in accordance with the approved
plans. As such, the department are satisfied that the burden of proof has been discharged and thus a
Certificate of Lawful Use may be granted and the consent is considered to be safeguarded in perpetuity.

Recommendation

To grant the Certificate of Lawful Use.

Page 30



Planning Committee: 03/12/2025 12.4

Application Reference: VAR/2025/42

Applicant: Cyfarwyddwr Tai ac Eiddo

Description: Application under Section 73 for the variation of condition (11) (CTMP) a (17) (Detailed
Report on Archaeology Work) of planning permission reference 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC (Creation of
Gypsie and Traveller site) so as to enable the CTMP to be submitted following the commencement of
development and to enable the archaeology report to be submitted within a different timescale at

Site Address: Cyffordd Star Crossroad, Star.

SAFLE / SITE

—_ GRADDFA/ SCALE 1:2500

| - /
© Hawlfraint Y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2025 Aralwg Ordnans ACD000825374. Fe'ch caniateir | ddefnyddio'r data
hwn er mwyn eich galluogi chi i ymateb i, neu ryngweithio gyda, y sefydliad a ddarparodd chi &' data. Ni chaniateir i chi
gopio, is-drwyddedu, desbarthu na gwerthu unrhyw ran o'r data hwn i drydydd parti ar unrhyw ffurf.

@& Crown copyright and database rights 2026 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374. You are permitted to use this data
solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-license. distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (Sion Hughes)
Recommendation: ermit
Reason for Reporting to Committee

The application is reported to the planning committee as it is made by the Local Authority on Local
Authority owned land.

Proposal and Site

The site is located in the open countryside of the Star area with access afforded via the A5 highway,
which lies to the South of the site and defines its Southern boundary. The site is sandwiched between the

Page 31



A5 and A55 highways, with the latter forming the Northern boundary of the site. The remaining
boundaries are shared with agricultural land. The site currently consists of a hardcore surface along with
a widened vehicular access, with these works having been done in association with permission
41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC.

The application is made under S73 in order to provide the details reserved by condition following the
commencement of the development.

Key Issues

The key issue of the application is the acceptability of the information provided to the specialist
consultees who originally requested the pre commencement conditions be imposed on the consent.

Policies
Joint Local Development Plan

Strategic Policy PS 4: Sustainable Transport, Development and Accessibility

Strategic Policy PS 5: Sustainable Development

Strategic Policy PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

Strategic Policy PS 19: Conserving and Where Appropriate Enhancing the Natural Environment
Policy TRA 4: Managing Transport Impacts

Policy PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

Policy PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

Policy PCYFF 3: Design and Place Shaping

Policy PCYFF 4: Design and Landscaping

Policy AMG 3: Protecting and Enhancing Features and Qualities that are Distinctive to the Local
Landscape Character

Policy TAI 8: Appropriate Housing Mix

Policy TAI 19: New Permanent or Transit Pitches or Temporary Stopping Places for Gypsies and
Travellers

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)

Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
Technical Advice Note 12: Design (2016)

Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004)
Technical Advice Note 24: The Historic Environment (2017)
Technical Advice Note 18: Transport (2007)

Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (2017)

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment (2008)

Response to Consultation and Publicity

Consultee Response

Priffyrdd a Trafnidiaeth / Highways and No objection to contents of Construction Traffic
Transportation Management Plan.

Cynghorydd Sonia Williams No response.

Cynghorydd Robin Wyn Williams No response.

Cynghorydd Dyfed Wyn Jones No response.

Page 32



Cyngor Cymuned Penmynydd a Star Community

Council No response.

Satisfied with contents of Archology works report

GCAG/ GAPS and that variation may be granted.

Publicity was afforded to the scheme via the posting of personal letters to occupiers of neighbouring
properties, with the latest date for representations to be made being the 03/10/2025. At the time of writing
this report,, no representations had been received from the public.

Relevant Planning History

DIS/2019/18 - Application to discharge condition (04) (statement and accompanying plan which
demonstrates a clear and robust method that mitigates the potential risk of vehicles waiting on the public
highway for someone to come to open the gates) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full
application for the change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces)
for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian
access and pavement together with associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star
Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/19 - Application to discharge condition (15) (updated plans which indicate firmly defined area(s)
of new planting for both hedges and grassland. Furthermore the areas of proposed evergreen hedge be
instead planted with holly and/or beech as a broadleaved alternative closer to native ecology
considerations) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of
agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation
of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with
associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/20 - Application to discharge condition (14) (method statement setting out that all
recommendations described in section 7 of the submitted Ecological Assessment report are adhered to
and adopted) from planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of
agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation
of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with
associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/21 - Application to discharge condition (16) (specification for a programme of archaeological
work) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the change of use of agricultural
land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new
vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with associated
development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged 04/04/2019

DIS/2019/28 - Application to discharge condition (12) (supporting design calculations for the attenuated
surface water drainage system) of planning permission 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC full application for the
change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and
Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation of a new pedestrian access and pavement
together with associated development on land East of Star Crossroad, Star Condition Discharged
04/04/2019

41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC - Full application for the change of use of agricultural land for use as a temporary
stopping place (10 spaces) for Gypsies and Travellers, formation of a new vehicular access, the formation
of a new pedestrian access and pavement together with associated development on land East of Star
Crossroad, Star. Approved 10/10/2018

Page 33



Main Planning Considerations

Condition (11) - Construction Traffic Management Plan
Condition (11) of 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC reads as below;

(11) The applicant shall submit a full comprehensive and robust Construction Phase Traffic Management
Scheme including:-

The parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors

Loading and unloading of plant and materials

Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

Wheel washing facilities (if appropriate)

Hours and days of operation;

and Management and operation of construction and delivery vehicles.

This Construction Phase Traffic Management Scheme shall be approved in writing by the planning
authority, in consultation with the Highways Authority prior to the commencement of development works
on site.

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian and vehicular safety and in the interests of the proper traffic
management of the site during construction.

The application submission included a construction traffic management plan as set out above and was
considered by the Local Authority Highways department. The Highways department had no objections to
the construction traffic management plan and as such the condition may be varied accordingly.

Condition (17) - Archaeology Works Report
Condition (17) of 41LPA1041/FR/TR/CC reads as below;

(17) A detailed report on the archaeological work, as required by condition (16), shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority within six months of the completion of the archaeological
fieldwork.

Reason: In order to safeguard local archaeological Interests

The application submission included the report specified by the condition above and was assessed by
Heneb. In response, it was noted the archaeological work was completed satisfactorily, although little of
interest was recorded on the site. The delayed submission in this case had no material impact on fulfilling
the public interest in making the results available and as such Heneb were satisfied that the requested
variation could be approved.

Conclusion

The requested variations were considered by the relevant specialist consultees who requested the
conditions originally. Neither consultee objected to the proposed variations and had no concerns with the
information which was provided. The variations would not materially alter the scheme nor would it alter
the proposals compliance with policies which were considered as part of the original scheme by the
Planning Committee. Due to the above, the Planning see no valid or material Planning reason to resist
the proposed variation.

Recommendation

That the application is permitted subject to the following conditions:

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 34



{02) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

AGS-CAP-ELS-01-DR- L-1001 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-ELS-01-DR- L-1003 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-HSC-01-DR-C-0201 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-HFE-01-DR- C-0301 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-HFE-01-DR- C-0302 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-HDG-01-DR- C-0501 Revision P03;
AGS-CAP-HGT-01-DR-C-0601 Revision P01;
AGS-CAP-HLG- 01-DR-C-1301 Revision P01; and AGS-CAP-HML-01-DR-C-0001 Revision P01

unless otherwise required to be approved under the terms of this permission and as thence
permitted.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

(03) Notwithstanding the submitted information, hereby approved, no surface water or land
drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or indirectly with the public sewerage network and
that it should be discharged to the Afon Braint, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
planning authority, in consultation with Welsh Water.

Reason: To ensure the proper drainage of the site and to protect the integrity of the public sewerage
network.

(04) Notwithstanding the submitted information, hereby approved, the applicant shall provide a
statement and accompanying plan which demonstrates a clear and robust method that mitigates
the potential risk of vehicles waiting on the public highway for someone to come to open the
gates. This statement and plan shall be submitted to the planning authority and receive approval,
prior to the commencement of development on site.

Reason: To prevent detrimental impacts on the safe operation of the public highway and in the interests
of pedestrian and vehicular safety.
*Discharged under application DIS/2019/18*

(05) The proposed pedestrian link, hereby approved, shall be constructed and in place prior to the
occupation of the site and shall remain in place at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

(06) The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the submitted plan,
drawing No "AGS-CAP-HDG-01-DR-C0501 rev.

P03" before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter shall be retained and kept free
from permanent obstruction and used only for access purposes.

Reason: To prevent detrimental impacts on the safe operation of the public highway and in the interests
of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

(07) The access shall be constructed with its gradient not exceeding 1 in 20 for the first 5 meters
back from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway.

Reason: To prevent detrimental impacts on the safe operation of the public highway and in the interests
of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

Page 35



(08) The access shall be constructed with 2.4 metre by 215 metre splays on either side. Within the
vision splay lines nothing exceeding 1 metre in height above the level of the adjoining
carriageway shall be permitted at any time.

Reason: To prevent detrimental impacts on the safe operation of the public highway and in the interests
of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

(09) The access shall be completed with a bitumen surface for the first 5 meters from the nearside
edge of the County Highway with the surface water drainage system completed and in perfect
working order before the use hereby permitted is commenced.

Reason: To prevent surface water shedding onto the carriageway.

(10) The parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as
submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for those
purposes.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity for occupants and internal site safety.

(11) The applicant shall submit a full comprehensive and robust Construction Phase Traffic
Management Scheme including:-

The parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors

Loading and unloading of plant and materials Storage of plant and materials used in constructing
the development

Wheel washing facilities (if appropriate) Hours and days of operation; and

Management and operation of construction and delivery vehicles.

This Construction Phase Traffic Management Scheme shall be approved in writing by the planning
authority, in consultation with the Highways Authority prior to the commencement of development
works on site.

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian and vehicular safety and in the interests of the proper traffic
management of the site during construction.
*Discharged under application VAR/2025/42*

(12) The applicant shall submit supporting design calculations for the attenuated surface water
drainage system. This information shall be approved in writing by the planning authority prior to
the commencement of development works on site.

Reason: In the interests of the proper drainage of the site.
*Discharged under application DIS/2019/28*

(13) Notwithstanding the approved information, any trees, plants or hedgerows, which are
included within the development for the express purpose of providing visual screening, which die
shall be replaced on a like for like basis, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning
authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity.

(14) The applicant shall submit a method statement setting out that all recommendations
described in section 7 of the submitted Ecological Assessment report are adhered to and
adopted. This method statement shall be approved in writing by the planning authority prior to the
commencement of development on site.

Reason: In order to preserve and protect the ecological interests of the development site.

Page 36



*Discharged under application DIS/2019/20*

(15) Notwithstanding the submitted information hereby approved, the applicant shall provide
updated plans which indicate firmly defined area(s) of new planting for both hedges and
grassland. Furthermore the areas of proposed evergreen hedge be instead planted with holly
and/or beech as a broadleaved alternative closer to native ecology considerations. This plan shall
be approved in writing by the planning authority, prior to any development works on site relating
to the implementation of the planting scheme.

Reason: In order to enhance the ecological interests of the site and safeguard visual and residential
amenity.
*Discharged under application DIS/2019/19*

(16) No development (including topsoil strip or other groundworks) shall take place until a
specification for a programme of archaeological work has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the planning authority. The development shall be carried out and all archaeological
work completed in strict accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to safeguard local archaeological interests.
*Discharged under application DIS/2019/21*

(17) A detailed report on the archaeological work, as required by condition (16), shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the planning authority within six months of the completion of the
archaeological fieldwork.

Reason: In order to safeguard local archaeological interests.
*Discharged under application VAR/2025/42*

Informatives:
(01) The applicant is advised that consideration should be given at construction stage to facilitate the
retro-fitting of CCTV, should future site issues emerge.

(02) The applicant is recommended to engage with North Wales Police on the preparation of any future
amendments or further detail to the Site Management Plan.

(03) The applicant is advised that any development that would contravene the protection afforded to bats
or Great Crested Newts under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended)
would require a derogation licence from Natural Resource Wales. Furthermore, a licence may only be
authorised if:

There is no satisfactory alternative.

The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species
concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range; and

The development works to be authorised must be for the purposes of preserving public health or safety,
or for other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a social or economic nature
and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the environment.

(04) The applicant is recommended to contact Natural Resource Wales about how the guidance
contained within Planning Policy Wales and the Environment Agency Guiding Principles for Land
Contamination (GPLC 1, 2 and 3), March 2010 can be adopted in relation to this development.

(05) The Highway Authority shall not be responsible for any road surface water entering the site as the
result of the development.

(06) Any adjustments, re-siting and/or protection of any statutory services in the highway shall be his
responsibility and carried out at his own expense.

Page 37



(07) The footway and/or verge crossing required in connection with this development shall be carried out
at his expense by the Highway Authority, their Agents or other approved Contractor before the access is
brought into use and completed before the use is commenced.

(08) The footway and/or verge crossing required in connection with this development shall be carried out
at his expense by the Highway Authority, their Agents or other approved Contractor before the access is
brought into use and completed before the use is commenced.

(09) If he/she chooses to carry out the work himself/, the Applicant should be advised to apply in writing to
the Head of Service of Highways, Transportation and Property for the necessary consent, as required
under Section 171 of the Highways Act, 1980 to carry out work within the highway for the formation of the
footway and/or verge crossing.

(10) It is a requirement under law to serve an abnormal load notice to the police and to Highway and
Bridges Authorities under "The Motor Vehicle
{Authorisation of Special Types) General Order 2003".

(11) The Highways Authority will be utilising Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 "Recovery of expenses
due to extraordinary traffic", to recover compensation for any damage done to the public highway as a
result of this development.

(12) The culverting of the land drainage ditch to provide for the vehicular access, will require a consent
from this Authority under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991.

(13) The applicant is advised that in order to achieve surface water discharge to the Afon Braint, a Flood
Risk Activity Permit may be required from Natural Resource Wales.

(14) Construction waste should only be disposed of to sites which can prove that they are registered as
exempt, or licensed under the Environmental Permitting Regulations. There is a legal requirement {Duty
of Care requirements of Section 34 the Environmental Protection Act 1990) on the site owner, contractor
etc. to ensure that the re-use or disposal of this waste is appropriate and complies with the Environmental
Permitting Regulations. Under the Duty of Care requirements, appropriate Waste Transfer Notes must be
produced and kept. Any waste which is imported as part of the construction is also subject to
Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010. The applicant should ensure they have appropriate
exemptions/permits in place for the waste activities.

(15) Pollution prevention methods should be in place for any work taking place at the eastern side of the
site within close proximity to the Afon Braint. The applicant should be aware of the contents of the latest
Pollution Prevention Guideline with regards to working near water i.e. GPP5 via the NetRegs website.

(16) Care should be taken with all work involving concrete so as not to pollute watercourses. Any water
that meets wet concrete must be treated as contaminated and must not be allowed to discharge into any
watercourse. Should pollution occur, Natural Resources Wales should be notified immediately on 03000
653000.

(17) All fuel, oil and chemicals used on site should be stored away in a locked store which is bunded to
110% capacity of the total volume

In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) before

the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the
heart of the permission/development.

Page 38



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	11 Development Proposals Submitted by Councillors and Officers
	12 Remainder of Applications

